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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
4:00 p. m

CHAI RVAN  HOQD: Good afternoon, |adies and
gentlenen. W are convening the broadcast of this public
heari ng by video conferencing. My nanme is Anthony Hood.
Joining me this evening are Vice Chair MIIler, Comm ssioner
Shapi ro, Conm ssi oner May, Conm ssioner Turnbull. Soon we'l]l
be joined by Ofice of Zoning Staff, Ms. Sharon Schellin, and
M. Paul Young, who is working all of our virtual operations.

| ask that all others will introduce thenselves
at the appropriate tine.

Copi es of today's virtual public hearing notice
are available on the Ofice of Zoning's website. Please be
advised this proceeding is being recorded by a court
reporter, and is al so webcast |ive, which includes WebEx and
YouTube Live. The video will be available on the Ofice of
Zoning's website after the hearing. Further, all listening
on the WebEx or by phone will be nuted t hroughout the hearing
until the appropriate tine.

Pl ease state your nane --

MR. YOUNG  Ant hony, you've been nuted. You've
been nuted, you have to unnute.

CHAI RMAN HOQD: So, I'"'m not sure who nuted ne.
My hand is nowhere near it.

MR YOUNG |It's only the |ast sentence, so you
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can pick up pretty nmuch where you left off.

CHAI RVAN HOCD: Al l right, thank you. Pl ease state
your nane and hone address before providing oral testinony
or your presentation. Wen you are finished speaking, please
mut e your audi o, maybe that's what it was about, please nute
your audio so that your mcrophone is no |onger picking up
sound or background noi se.

If you experience difficulty accessing WebEx or
with your tel ephone call in, then please call our OZ hotline
nunber at 202-727-5471, to sign up or to receive WbEx | og
in or call in instructions.

Al'l persons planning to testify, either in favor
or in opposition in our virtual hearings, we encourage you
to sign up in advance. At the time of sign up, all
participants conplete the oath or affirmation required by
Subtitle z408.7.

If you wish to file witten testinony or
addi ti onal supporting docunents during the hearing, then
pl ease be prepared to describe and discuss it at any tinme in
your testinony.

The hearing will be conducted in accordance with
provi sions of 11 ZCWVR Chapter 4 as follows: prelimnary
matters, Applicant's case, Report of the Ofice of Planning
and the Departnent of Transportation, Report of Oher

governnent agencies, Report of +the ANC, testinony or
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5

organi zati ons, and i ndividuals -- testinony of organizations
and i ndi vidual s, each having five or three m nutes, dependi ng
upon whether it be an organization or individual.
Organi zations five mnutes, individuals three mnutes. And
then, we'll have rebuttal and cl osing by the Applicant.

Wi | e the Conmi ssion reserves the right to change
the tine limts on presentations if necessary, it intends to
adhere to the time limts as strictly as possible unless
there is no tine set this evening.

Again, the O&Z hotline for any issues is 202-727-
5471, 202-727-5471, any outstanding issues during this
nmeet i ng.

At this tinme, the Comm ssion wll consider any
prelimnary matters. Does the staff have -- has Ms. Schellin
joined us? Does the staff have any prelimnary matters?

MS. SCHELLIN: No, sir, sorry about that. | had
j oi ned anot her neeting all by nyself.

So, the only prelimnary matters that | see are
proffered expert wtnesses, and that would be Yulia
Bel ti kova, and she's been previously accepted, or he, |' mnot
sure which. So, that would be the only prelimnary matter.

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  |I'msorry, Ms. Schellin. | had --
you know, when you are at home, and your phone rings, and
that was an inportant call. So, | had to do that. Could you

repeat that, please?
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6
MS. SCHELLI N: Yes. Just the proffered expert

wtness, and that wuld be Yulia Beltikova, who has
previ ously been accepted. And, just as a rem nder, this case
was conti nued fromDecember 16, 2019. |t was reschedul ed for
April 6th, which because of the COVID 19 that hearing did not
happen. And so, we rescheduled it for today.

G her than that, | do not have -- there was a
notion for a waiver of the rules to accept the | ate posting,
that was -- it was seven days late, so that would be a
prelimnary matter. |t was posted May 20t h, seven days | ate,
to discuss the Affidavit of WM ntenance, which was not
notari zed, but they did subnmt an affirmation of mai nt enance,
just to affirmthat they did maintain the signs, they just
were not able to get it notarized.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: (Ckay. Let nme see, are there any
objections to the |ate posting waiver? |I'mlooking, | don't
see any. (Ckay, so we are good.

MS. SCHELLIN: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay.

MS. SCHELLIN: Al right, and the lack of notary
on the mai ntenance affidavit, no problens with that.

CHAI RMAN  HOQOD: Any objections to the |ack of
notary? Ckay, | don't see any, so we have no objections.

MS. SCHELLI N: And, like | said, the proffered

expert in architecture previously accepted, and so ot her than
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that there are no prelimnary matters. Just to also rem nd
t he Conmm ssion, this case was del ayed to all owthe Conm ssi on
to consider sone waterfront regul ati ons, which was taken up
in | believe it was Case No. 20-01 if ny nenory proves
correct. And, that case will have final action sonmetinme this
sunmer .

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Schellin.
Agai n, Comm ssioners, we've already had Yulia Belti kova party
status. Any objections?

Ckay, so she continues that status.

Anyt hing el se, Ms. Schellin?

MS. SCHELLI N: QO her than the Applicant is
planning a 15 to 20-mnute presentation, unless the
Commi ssi on woul d |i ke sonet hing ot herw se.

CHAI RMVAN HOQOD: Looking at the record, | don't
know, we may -- let nme see what others think. | don't want
to -- 15 to 20 m nutes, maybe ten m nutes?

COMM SSI ONER MAY:  Yes, less is probably better.
| don't think we need to go into it in a lot of detail. W
did review materials previously in the other hearing. So,

we' d rat her hear them nmake the case briefly.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Right. | saw ot her heads noddi ng,
so with that concurrence, | would ask that you heard our very
bri ef discussion, | would ask that you have ten m nutes and

hit the highlights, especially, of things that we wanted to
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see from last tinme, this time | think would be very
beneficial tous. So, with that, I wll turn it over to M.
Hot t el - Cox.

M5. HOTTEL- COX: Great, thank you.

Good afternoon, Conmm ssioners. M nane is Meghan
Hottel -Cox, and | along with nmy coll eague, Christine Roddy,
are attorneys with the law firm of Goulston & Storrs.

We are asking for a Moddification of Significance
to an approved design review project and related tenporary
special exenption to allow WiyHotel, a pop-up hotel, to
operate at the project for a nmaxi rumof two years.

Thi s application presents an i nportant opportunity
to activate a large project in alesser popul ated area during
the critical |ease up period of the building.

The Riverfront project was initially approved in
2017 by the Comm ssion, to facilitate the redevel opnent of
the old Coast Guard Headquarters at Buzzard Point in
sout hwest D. C. The Commi ssion then approved m nor
nodi fications to the project plans in 2018, as a Moudification
of Consequence. Finally, earlier this spring, the Conm ssion
approved a Modification of Consequence to allow D.C. Central
Kitchen to cone in to the ground fl oor.

Al of these applications were supported by the
O fice of Planning and the ANC

The project is wunder construction and once
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conpleted it wll include 480 residential units and
significant ground store retail, including restaurants and
a community serving market, in addition to D . C. Central
Ki t chen. However, given the current isolation of the

project, the Applicant has concerns about <creating the
vi brant environnent that wll attract residents and support
retail fromthe opening of the project.

Therefore, the Applicant has partnered wth
Why Hot el to provide a tenporary |odging use for,
approxi mately, 150 units at the property, for a nmaxi num of
two years, to bring people to the property from openi ng day
to support the retail and residential conmunities.

This two-year interimuse will allow the project
to nove forward as intended to result in the high quality of
the pertinent retail building approved by the Conm ssion.

Finally, we would note the Capital Gateway design
review of these provisions explicitly included | odging use
as an encouraged use in this area. So, we feel the interim
use furthers the purposes of the CD5 Zone, as well as
support the project.

Because the existing building is located in the
100 year flood plain, we are also requesting a tenporary
speci al exception for |odging use within the 100 year fl ood
pl ai n, per the recent anmendnent to the Zoni ng Regul ati ons.

The property's isolation neans the project needs
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a way to imedi ately activate. WyHotel is a tenporary use
that wll support the present residential and retail usage
that the Conm ssion had already approved. And also, as |
noted, | odging is an encouraged use in this zone.

Addi tionally, this nodification neets the speci al
exception requirenents. The project underwent a detailed
fl ood proofing plan as part of this code nodification, during
the project's initial permtting.

DOEE has fil ed a report supporting the | odgi ng use
due to the flood proofing plans already approved for the
project, which will protect the occupants of the building.
DCEE conditioned their support on all of the lodging units
bei ng | ocated at or above the design flood elevation as the
residential units were. All of the | odging units are | ocated
above this level, as they are on the fourth and fifth floors
of the building. And, therefore, the nodification neets this
condition. W believe the tenporary use will further the
pur poses of designing regulations for these reasons.

| also wanted to touch on our conmunity outreach.
We began discussing the nodification with the ANC prior to
filing and continued after the ANC s neeting in Decenber
We greatly appreciate the ANC s time and ener gy spent neeting
with wus about the project, so, of course, we were
di sappointed we were unable to conme to an agreenent.

While the ANC said they did not object to the
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concept of the WhayHotel's use, they are pushing for benefits
to the community associated with the application.

Wiile we understand as a design review case,
comunity benefits are not part of the Zoning Comm ssion's
consideration, we want to be good neighbors wth the

comunity, and therefore we have commtted to two comunity

benefits that we wll detail further in the presentation.
Even though the ANCis still in opposition to the
use, we are still conmmtted to providing these benefits to

the community.

Finally, we are pleased to be here with the
support of the Ofice of Planning, and with OP's report
i ncluding comments from DDOT and DHCD, neither of which
obj ected to our nodification application.

As | nmentioned, DOEE also filed a report in
support, as did FEMS.

W greatly appreciate, especially, OP and DOCEE s
ti me working through this project as a nodification with us.

Wth that, we have two w tnesses today. Tom
Wl bur, with Akridge will testify on behalf of the ownership
team And, Jason Fudin will testify will testify on behalf
of WhyHot el . W also have Yulia Beltikova, the project
architect here, in case the Comm ssi on has any questions for
her .

So, with that | wll turn it over to Tom
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MR YOUNG |'mnot seeing a Tomin here. D d you
call in using a phone?

M5. HOTTEL- COX: It seens he may have had sone
difficulty joining, but | think we could go ahead and have
Jason Fudin with WyHotel conplete his portion of the
presentati on.

MR FUDIN. |'m happy to do that. Can you guys
hear nme okay?

CHAI RVAN HOOD: W hear you fi ne.

MR FUDIN. H. M nane is Jason Fudin. |'mthe
CEO and Co- Founder of WhyHotel. W are a D.C. -based hot el
conpany in Northeast, and we've been around for about three
years now. W've been working with Akridge on the Ri verfront
Project and with the comunity, to see if we can't |and one
of our buildings here.

| think there's a presentation, although |I don't
know t he best way to show it, so maybe I'll just give you
guys the quick high Ievel, unless someone can help nme out.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Did you submt a presentation?

M5. HOTTEL- COX: And | submtted it to Pau
earlier this norning.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: There it is. He can do it.

MR. FUDIN. Thank you, Paul. 1'Il keep this very
brief as requested. So, if you just scroll down a couple

pages, yes, yes, Kkeep going. Anesone. That's where we
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start.

So, the way WhyHotel works is, actually, pretty
straightforward, building delivered to River Point, and it
delivers enpty and not activated.

And so, what we do is, we show up, we furnish the
100 or nore units and we run a mx of short and |ong
furni shed stays out of the vacancy. W do that with a 24/7
on site staff. Generally, that staff is hired directly from
the communi ty, because those are the best anbassadors of the
nei ghbor hood. And, we run all day-to-day operations of the
units that are in our crew that are furnished.

And then, as we | eave the building, we return the
units in the sane condition we got them brand new and ready
for the owner.

What that allows a group like Akridge to do is
bring instant activation to a site. And so, we pride
oursel ves on, you know, inmediately bringing in energy into
the building, with the guests froma |lot of different groups
who do |longer stays in the D.C. area with a lot of State
Departnment fol ks that are here for training, we woul d expect
folks fromthe National Defense University here.

W see tenporary relocations, you know, soneone
who is noving to the area that needs a place for a nonth, and
we see business-oriented feeds, on a kind of Mnday to

Thur sday busi ness travel er. And, we see everyone who is
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traveling with children, where the D.C. hotel front doesn't
have nmulti bedroons, so the ability to put your children in
a bedroom ends up being really val uabl e.

Qur nodel is designed to support the devel opnent
of housing, and so we are only in units that are otherw se
enpty. If they becone |eased, we leave, and we in all
situations are never in inclusionary zoning units.

And, as the building is filled with |ong-term
renters, we |eave the building altogether. Qur history in
D.C., we've run one other project here, you know, on K
Street, N.E. That building | eased up very quickly. W were
there for only eight nonths.

In this region, we've done a couple in Arlington
County. We've done one in Fairfax County. W' ve done one
in the Cty of Baltinore. On average, we are in those
bui | di ngs sonmewhere between ei ght and 15 nonths. The reason
we ask for up to 24 nonths is in case |easing takes | onger
if it's alarger building. But, our expectation would be to
be there for about 16 to 18 nont hs.

In terms of what that means for the Cty, we end
up creating jobs. W don't have to do the presentation, |
think we are all right -- we end creating jobs, you know,
somewher e between a dozen and a dozen and a half. W also
end up creating a decent anmount of hotel tax base on this

project, |I'd expect it to be over a half a mllion dollars.
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And, yes, | nean and our goal is to be a part of
the community that we operate in. As | nentioned, we are
about a three-year old conpany. We are based in Northeast
D.C., and |I'm happy to answer questions. | know you guys
have got the material in advance.

| guess Megan didn't run you t hrough the community
benefits, we did neet wwth the ANC, had | ong conversati ons.
Actual ly, sone of us used to be at PN Hoffrman so they know
the ANC wel |, and have a ton of respect for them

You know, what we are able to do as an operator
is things that fall under kind of WiwyHotel's purview. And
so, one of those, we are offering all ANC 6D residents the
same discounts on room rates that we give our enployees.
And, additionally, we are going to have a career day or two
totry to hire, you know, sponsored with the ANC, and try to
hire directly fromthe comunity.

We, actually, find that nmenbers of the community
tended to be the best teamnenbers for our projects, and t hen
t he hope is that, you know, they continue to grow with us as
a conpany, as we open up nore in the region.

Il will -- 1'"Il stop there and keep it short, but
if there's any questions |I'm happy to answer them

MS. HOTTEL- COX: Thanks, Jason, and then just
briefly. | did want to say a couple of things in response

to the ANC s report that they submitted in opposition. They
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noted that they didn't think the application was in concert
with the original project proposal that the ANC had supported
and the Zoni ng Comm ssi on had approved.

But, however, as Jason has testified, he believes
t he WhayHot el use supports and furthers that original project
proposal, and it's only tenporary. After the nmaxi numof two
years, the WiyHotel operation would cease, and the project
woul d operate exactly as supported by the ANC and approved
by the Conmm ssi on.

We feel, however, that tenporary interimuse for
up to, approximately, a third of the apartnent units wl|
help realize that full vision of the original project.

W also disagree with the ANC s report that it
woul d be a benefit to the conmunity, to deny the application,
because it mght result in nore vacancies of the project.
G ven that the purpose of CG design review process, it's to
encourage activation at the Capital Gateway area. W don't
agree that |ong vacancies are a positive. W believe the
project's 480 residential units, significant retail
opportunities, inprovenents to the Anacostia River front, to
create the begi nning of the River WAl k Trail and the addition
of the tenporary WhyHotel use will result in a project that
furthers the purpose of the Capital Gateway area.

That concludes our presentation, but as Jason

said, we are happy to answer any questions t he Conm ssi on nmay
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have.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ckay, thank you for you all's
presentation. M. Hottel-Cox, didn't you have sonebody el se
who was going to say sonething, or they were not able to
connect ?

M5.  HOTTEL- COX: He wasn't able to nake
connection. He is listening on the phone, but he was just
going to give kind of a brief project update, which is,
essentially, that the project is under construction. It is
very close to conpletion, and we expect to open later this
-- the project expects to open later this summer.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, great. Thank you.

Let ne see if ny coll eagues have any questi ons.
Let's go in our regular order. Conmm ssi oner May, any
questions or conments?

COMM SSI ONER MAY: | do not have any questions.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Commi ssi oner Shapiro, do you have
any questions or coments?

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO | do. Thank you, M.
Chair, just a brief question for Ms. Hottel-Cox.

VWhat is -- you may have nentioned this and |
mssed it, but what is the developer projecting the
absorption rate to be, why two years, why not one year? |
nmean, what's the plan here.

MS. HOTTEL-COX: In terns of | eases?
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COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Yes. What is the projected

absorption rate?

MS. HOITEL- COX: So, | don't have the exact
proj ected absorption rate. | think as Jason said --

MR FUDI N: Meghan, | can junp in. They would
expect to fill the building in 15 to 18 nonths, and,
generally, we ask for alittle bit |onger, because you can't

control the velocity of the | ease up. So, there's a natural
mar ket absor ption.
And, we have never gone the 24 nonths. | think

the longest it has evolved was 15 nonths, which was about a

400 unit building. But, all of our approvals in other
jurisdictions have been for 24 nonths, so that we have the
flexibility in case it takes | onger.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI ROC  kay, thanks, that's what
| was | ooking for. Appreciate it.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. Commi ssioner Turnbul | ?

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: | have no questions, M.
Chai r.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. Vice Chair Mller?

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Thank you, M. Chair. | know
you don't really see, |I've been having connection problens
al | day.

|  wonder if the -- thank you for your
presentation, | wonder if you could -- the Applicant could
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address the OP sunmary of the DHCD comment on page --

MR YOUNG We | ost your sound agai n, Comm ssi oner
MIler.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Rob, we | ost your sound. I s he
going to have to repeat all that?

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Rob, are you there? |

don't believe he can hear us.

M5. SCHELLIN:. [I'mgoing to text him

MR, YOUNG  Yes, Rob, we |ost your sound agai n.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Rob, | can see you, so go ahead
and ask -- we can see you, so go ahead and ask your questi on,
and | think we can hear it. Go ahead and do it again.

VICE CHAIR MLLER Gve nme just a mnute. The
sound is not good. Gve it a mnute or two.
CHAI RMAN  HOCD: Because if not, you can always

call me back. The sound is |Ioud and clear through here.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Al l right.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Let nme call you back.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Al right. Let's wait. Let's
just give it a mnute or two until he's set and com ng back
on.

VICE CHAIR MLLER. So, | don't knowif you heard
ny question, if the Applicant heard ny question.

CHAI RMAN HOCOD:  No, | think you have to repeat it.
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VICE CHAIR M LLER: The question was quickly on

page five of the OP report summari zing DHCD s comment about
the inclusionary zoning unit, if you can respond to their
comment that they would welconme I Z units in addition to those
originally required, so that a greater neasure of
affordability is retained as the market devel ops.

M5. HOTTEL-COX: | can briefly reply to that. You
know, in terns of DHCD s overall coments, you know, we have
agreed that the WhyHotel use will not inpact the permanent
| Z units that are at the project. And, while we understand
DHCD s interested in all ways in increasing inclusionary
zoning wunits, for this project the project neets the
requi rements of the Zoni ng Regul ati on, and, you know, we are
unabl e to increase the nunber.

VICE CHAIR M LLER So, on that, there's eight
units being provided, and | think that's the pent house space?
MS. HOTTEL--COX: Yes, that's correct.

VICE CHAIR MLLER  You are not subject to the
usual inclusionary zoning for the 485 units bel ow.

M5. HOTTEL--COX: That's correct.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: And, why is that?

M5. HOTTEL--COX: It includes an office conversion
of the old Coast Guard Headquarters.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: VWhich |'ve asked OP to | ook

at to change, because that should absolutely be subject to
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the 1Z. Areyouwlling at all to increase the inclusionary
zoning units in this 485 unit project beyond ei ght?

M5. HOTTEL--COX: At this point, you know, because
the project is so close to opening, and has been, you know,
through permtting, and is, you know, fully conplete, we
woul dn't be able to change that at this tine.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Ckay. Thank you for vyour
response.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: | under stand what our requirenent
I's, but I would agree with you, Vice Chair. | hesitate, |
will continue to look at that inthis final concept. | think
nost of the time we can do what we can do. | believe we can
do that. | know we have this approval on it, but I think we
can do a little better on this.

Al'l right. Any other questions or follow up?

So, what was the percentage, this inprovenent you
nmenti oned that you were given to the ANC and, | guess, those
who live in that single nmenber district, or within that ANC,
t he di scount rate?

MR, FUDIN. Yes. So, right now for our enpl oyees
it's between 15 and 20 percent off of the base rate.
Al t hough, we're actually exploring doing a deeper discount
program and so the reason we tied that to the enpl oyee rate
I s because we felt |ike whatever we were willing to give our

team nenbers we want to be able to give the sane price cut
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to the nei ghborhood.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. | would like for you, we
know where you are in this process, but | think the Vice
Chair's coments nay very well set with ne, and | think that
he really brings up a great point. So, while you are | ooki ng
at the discount, look at those other things that you heard
the Vice Chair nention this evening.

MR FUDI N Understood. Because we are a partner
of Akridge now, it's not our building and, you know, we
didn't finance it, we don't really have control over the way
t hat they' ve fi nanced and own the buil ding outright. W just
get to cone just like a retail tenant would, and they kind

of use them

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  All I'masking you to do is just
| ook at it. | nmean, you know, |'m not going to ask you
t oday, because we won't be voting on this today, |'m asking
you to look at it. |'ve seen sone very creative ways of

t hi ngs that happen down here, including Watergate. So, you
tal k about affordabl e housing. |'ve seen that, |'ve seen
sonme creative things that have happened since |'ve been on
t he Conmmi ssi on.

| will continue to support the Vice Chair on this.
| think, you know, | think there is a possibility, because
just they've got to assign the plots. So, let ne just ask

this, M. Hottel-Cox. Comm ssioner Fast, | believe was
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comngonalittle bit later. What did you think about -- did
you see her subm ssion to us, M. Fudin, did you all see her
subm ssi on?

MR FUDIN: Yes, | did, | read that subm ssion.

M5. HOTTEL- COX: Yes.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Can you just respond, you may
have, coul d you just respond again to sone of the things that
they are nentioning in their letter to us.

MS. HOITEL- COX: Sure, | can help you, kind of
reiterate sone of the response. Yes, we appreciate the ANC s
time, and, you know, working with themon the project. They
wer e aski ng, you know, throughout about sone kind of increase
in conmunity benefits, related to the nodification.

But, of course, this is a bit of a design review
page, you know, that wasn't part of the nodification. But,
we did agree to those two things that Jason tal ked about,
both the career day to try and really focus on enploying
i ndividuals for the WiyHotel use from outside -- or from
wthin ANC 6D, as well as the discount rate to all the
residents of ANC 6D.

And then, of course, you know, she tal ked about
the ANC s wish for additional affordable housing, and, you
know, potentially, sonmehow!| think in her testinony nentioned
relating that in some way to the WhyHotel units as they went

of fline. | wasn't exactly sure what the idea was, | would
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just, you know, reiterate that due to where the project is
at this point we are not, you know, able to commt to
addi ti onal affordable housing. Related to the | odging use,
that is tenporary, and that, you know, we believe will just
hel p activate the site.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: So, | et ne nmake sure | understand,
and then we'll nove on.

The rational e behind the discount, even though I
know this is not a PUD application, but the rationale was to
try to offset and ki nd of give sone type of anenity. |Is that
what |'m hearing?

MS. HOTTEL- COX: Yes.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: All right. Any other questions?
Go ahead.

MR.  FUDI N: One other thing that Comm ssioner
M Il er brought up that | think is probably worth addressing.
She nmentioned that hotels, because of the Corona virus are
having a hard enough time, and so why would you allow
WhyHot el use?

And, | would just say to that, you know, we are
a D.C -based conpany, unlike, you know, the nmjority or
al nrost every hotel in D.C, we are a D.C -based small
busi ness. M and ny co-founder live inthe District with our
honmes. W won't be selling our conpany. And, |I'd say if the

City wants to support any hotel business, | woul d assune t hey
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woul d want to support one that's been grown in its backyard,
t hat has pushed out nationally, but this is our hone.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Okay. Any other questions? Not
seeing -- okay, M. Schellin, I'mtrying to renenber, |
haven't been away that | ong, does the ANC get to cross in a
desi gn case?

M5. SCHELLIN: Yes.

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: They do? Ckay. | guess |
remenber sone things.

Conmi ssi oner Fast?

COMWM SSI ONER FAST:  Yes, hi, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Do you have any cross exani nati on?

COW SS|I ONER FAST: | have not, necessarily, a
guestion, but | think I'd like to get a clarification,
because | believe that M. Hottel-Cox mi srepresented the

di scussion that we had with t he devel oped of the WiyHot el and
her offi ce.

CHAI RMAN  HOOD: So, Comm ssioner Fast, what |
woul d suggest is to ask questions. You will have -- you are
going to have anple tine to follow up on anything that you
think was msstated. You'll be able to restate it. You'll
have nore time when we get to your report.

But, right now, it's for cross exam ne, you m ght
want to ask -- if you ask it in a question | get it, but if

not we can hear it in your presentation.
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COW SSI ONER FAST: Ckay, I'll wait for the

presentati on.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ckay.

COW SSI ONER FAST: And, |'ll address it then.
Thank you. So, | have no questions at this point.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Thank you.

Let's go to the Ofice of Planning and the
District Departnent of Transportation.

MS. VI TALE: Good afternoon, M. Chair, and
menbers of the Comm ssion, Elisa Vitale with the O fice of
Pl anni ng.

OP is recomending approval of the requested
Modi fication of Significance and special exception to all ow
a tenporary |lodging use at River Point. OP does reconmend
a two-year tine limt on the approval of the tenporary use.

Wth that, 1'lIl conclude ny report, and |'d be
happy to answer any questi ons.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Okay, thank you, Ms. Vitale. Do
we have anybody here fromDDOT? Al right. So, let's goto
ot her governnent reports. |I'msure we all saw, and | think
it was nmentioned by -- oh, I"'msorry, Vice Chair Mller?

VICE CHAIR MLLER M. Chairman, | was going to
ask Ms. Vitale, where are we with proposing | Z applicability
to office conversions toresidential? Is that in our |Z Plus

hearing, or is that a separate case?
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M5. VITALE: | don't believe that's part of the

| Z Plus discussion, but it is sonmething we certainly heard
your comments on this afternoon, and can bring this issue
back to the staff at OP that are working on the |Z program
and raise this with them

CHAI RVAN  HOCQD: Ckay. Al right, thank you.
O her governnent reports. As stated earlier, we did have a
report, Exhibit 26, from the Departnent of Energy and the
Environnent, and it was from | believe, the Director, M.
Wells. And, he goes on to tal k about conversations on the
flood plain on the submssion, there's some differing
conditions behind it. So, | think that's in the record. W
al so have -- | think that -- yes, that was it.

MS. VI TALE: There was one from DHCD at Exhi bit

19.

CHAl RVAN HOOD:  Ckay. Exhibit 19?

MS. VITALE: Yes.

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  All right. GCkay. So, we did have
sonmet hing, but | think our Vice Chair had spoke -- | think

he spoke about that, Exhibit 19.

Anyway, any other reports that | may be m ssing?
Al right, not seeing any.

Let's go to the ANC, let's go to Comm ssioner
Fast .

COW SSI ONER FAST: Thank you. Good afternoon,
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Chai rman Hood, and Zoni ng Conm ssioners. I'"'m Gail Fast,
Chair of ANC-6D, representing sout hwest Navy Yard and Buzzard
Poi nt .

At a regularly scheduled and properly noticed
public neeting on Decenber 9, 2019, with a quorum present,
t he quorum being four comm ssioners, Advisory Nei ghborhood
Comm ssi on, ANC-6D voted 6-0-1 to oppose the zoni ng case, No.
17-05B, Modification of Significance, order No. 17-05 and 17-
O5A for 2100 1st Street, S.W, Square 613, Lot 10. And,
voted 6-0-1 to authorize ne to speak today.

As we stated in our report, ANC- 6D believes that
this Modification of Significance should be deni ed, because
the Applicant has not sufficiently denonstrated that the

change is in concert with the original concept that's been

put forth and subsequently approved by both this ANC and t he
D.C. Zoning Comm ssion for a rental apartnent buil ding.

In both their Statenent of Support and pre-hearing
subm ssion, the Applicant submtted to both the Zoning
Commi ssion and ANC 6-D, and they described their project
t husly.

The residential conponent anchors the site and i s
t houghtfully planned its future residents in mnd. The upper

floors in the building are designed to capture the views of
t he Anacostia River to the South, and the planned stadiumto

the north of the property, as well as other nonunental views
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in the vicinity of the buil ding.

The rooftop is designed to provide a respite for
residents, conplete with a pool and pool terrace, as well as
a roof terrace facing the Anacostia River. The building is
designed wth multiple courtyards, as well as to provi de open
spaces and Vi ews. In all, the residential building wll
provi de spaces that appeal to a range of tenants and provide
the opportunity for passive recreation.

As ANC-6D wote in our report, this is not just
any apartnent building. The Applicant is constructing 485
units of market-rate housing | ocated on, arguably, the nost
beautifully situated, and valued piece of property on the
Anacostia River. And, of those 485 market-rate units only
ei ght, a count of eight of those will be affordable.

In a city where every single elected official
| oudly lanents the |lack of affordable housing, in a city
where our own conprehensive plan establishes the basic
prem se that the city nmust grow nore inclusively to achieve
its full potential. 1In a city where our Mayor |aunched her
second i naugural address enbracing her strong comrmitnent to
housi ng equity and affordability, eight affordable units out
of 485 market-rate units, is beyond a disgrace.

As was noted, the District Departnment of Housing
and Conmruni ty Devel opnent al so recogni zed that the Applicant

was using a tenporary lodging as a neans, and | quote from
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their report, to establish a higher rent market where one
does not exi st.

They requested, as Vice Chair MIler indicated,
that the Applicant provide additional |Z units, so that a
greater neasure of affordability would be retained. That's
also in the Ofice of Planning's report that was dated on
March 27, 2020.

Now this Applicant has asked for a Modification
of Significance as a hardship. Real | y? What is the
significant, what is of significance is that this Applicant
has al ready been significantly advantaged by their ability
to construct by matter of right. No PUD was required here.
Had it been, this would have been a very different project.

In addition, they and their investors are further
advantaged by being in an opportunity zone, which under
DMPED s own priorities for investnents to require delivery
a new nei ghbor hood serving anenities such as retail and fresh
food grocers. Provi sion of investnent capital and growth
opportunities for D.C. snmall businesses, particularly, those
| ed by under-represented entrepreneurs, creation of jobs for
D.C. residents, and pathways to the mddle class, and
i ncreasing affordability and workforce housi ng.

Wiile | believe that the ANC has established that
ei ght out of 485 warrants an increase to either affordable

or wor kforce housing. It's strange federally that either
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Akridge or any of their partners for this project are
struggling entrepreneurs, nor designates them that the
| argest retail tenant promses to build the Gty's fanciest
fish restaurant, not exactly a nei ghborhood-serving anenity,
and already owns a chain of great restaurants and is the
region's largest fish purveyor, and sits on the board of
Eagl eBank, is an under represented entrepreneur.

Moreover, the addition of 100 units of [uxury
hotel, even with the friends and famlies discount, is not
a nei ghborhood-serving anenity that is in any way required.
We al ready have 15 new hotels | ocated within the boundaries
of our ANC, nore than enough to nmeet our comunity needs.
And, let's get real here. Wile we are navigating through
t he COVI D- 19 pandem ¢, it should be recognized that ona City
| evel there are nmany hotels that are struggling and need
hel p, and they have properties that are still vacant. To whom
do we owe all egiance? Those who sweat and struggle, are in
j eopardy, whose workers may not have jobs to conme back to.

ANC- 6D has no quarrel with the WhyHotel concept.
However, by allowing the Applicant to put a hotel on site,
regardl ess of the fact that it is tenporary, which was at the

ANC s specific insistence, it sinply lowers the availability

of apartment units in the building, and will keep rental
prices of the remaining units artificially high. Thi s,
certainly, wll do nothing to either increase either
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af f ordabl e or workforce housi ng.

While the Applicant clains that the addition of
the WhayHotel will help them ease the pain of |easing of 485
units of market-rate housing, it seens to ANC-6D that this
addi ti onal benefit to themprovi des absolutely no benefit to
the wder community, and is alone sufficient reason for the
Applicant's request be deni ed.

And, one further point, if | may. Shoul d t he
Modi fication of Significance be granted, and we hope that it
w Il not be, ANC-6D strongly believes that is tine that they
put their noney where their mouthis. If the Applicant wants
to specifically, change the project that they' ' ve originally
proposed, then they nust be required to make significant
changes to the benefits they provide to the wi der conmunity.

ANC- 6D hunbly proposes that should this request
go forward the Applicant be required to provide a healthy
percentage of their vacated hotel units to be either nade
avai |l abl e for workforce housing, so at long | ast Applicant's
own description of a building that will provide a range of
tenants will cone to pass. This concludes our testinony, and
| ook forward to answering your questions.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Thank you very nuch, Chairperson
Fast, | really appreciate your conmments and sone of the
testimony you provided. Wien | listentoit, | will tell you

that | agree with just about all your coments. | think
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there are ways to do it, but also being a Comm ssioner |'ve
al so figured that | have sone Regul ations | have to go by.

So, you heard the Vice Chair and nyself have to
ask, sonetines design review we can't insert a base, as you
al ready know, we can go on with a PUD because what |'m
hearing you say | wll tell you nostly, and | wll say
probably 95 percent of it | would like to see as well.

But, | also on the other side, now | won't
contradi ct nyself, on the other side this Conm ssion, we have
rules in place on howto proceed, which leads ne to ny first
guestion. Well, maybe | should go in order. Well, let ne
go.

The discount rate for the community, even though
that's not, necessarily, germane to this process, would you
count that as a plus for the nei ghborhood, or will your | ast
st at ement supersede even the discount that they are working
with you all on. D d you understand nmy question?

COMM SSI ONER FAST: | do under st and your questi on.
So, when we net with the WhyHotel and Akridge, as | nentioned
in nmy testinony, the request and the Applicant in as far as
we are concerned with this acreage. This is, they are
bringing in the WayHotel to help themranp up and, you know,
get tenants in their building.

In talking with Jason and others, we asked, you

know, what you could do for the comrunity, because we don't
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see anything com ng out of Akridge. CQbviously, the lZ units
and the nunber of themis disproportionate and it's really
I n essence a joke.

So, Jason did cone back with the discounts. To
be honest, the initial discount that they were comng -- |
think he tal ked about it, 10 to 15 percent, based on what
they currently charge, would not be affordable to anyone in
ANC-6D, or to a limted nunber, especially, around the
comunity that this building will be built around. Lower
southwest is technically and traditionally a nore | ower
econom ¢ social cultural environnent. They woul d not be abl e
to afford to have famly and friends stay at the \WyHotel.
So, while it was a very nice gesture, it has absolutely no
bearing on the wder community and assisting the wder
comruni ty.

The workforce piece, obviously, any tine that

anyone |l ocal can hire locally we are all for that. But, that

seens mnimal conpared to the 485 units that will be market
rate that Akridge will benefit from It doesn't seem-- the
fewfolks that they' Il be able to hire at the hotel just seem

to equate to nmuch of a conmunity benefit.

Does that answer your question?

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Yes, you' ve answered my question
very well, which leads ne to nore questions. But, | know

Akridge, and | know some things they nay control, but |

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

35

really appreciate your comments.

And, I"'msitting here thinking of howin a design
review case do | -- can get to those comments. What | can
do is ask, and | think Chairperson Fast brought up a good
poi nt .

Ms. Hottel-Cox, | know that you all are talking
about discounts. But, her point is valid. However they say
af fordabl e, and affordable to who. So, sticking in about
af fordabl e housing, it is really not affordable to sone of
us, including nyself.

So, why don't we continue and | ook at that, even
t hough | knowthat's not a proper, | knowthat's not anything
you can do in a design, but let's try to get there.

| nvariably, the Chairperson has said about
sonet hing, and even if you just have a fewunits for sonebody
to be able to get a discount. I'mgoing to | eave that up to
you all to try to think, because |I don't want to interfere
with what the ANC is doing, but | think that's a good
gesture. And, |I'm sorry the acreage, hopefully, they are
| i stening, too, and they can becone a good gesture and a good
nei ghbor as wel | .

So, that's where | amon that. | don't think this
ask is asking too much of what sone of these conpanies are
benefitting from and I'm not putting it all on you M.

Fudin, but | would just ask continue to work. You heard
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Chai rperson Fast talk about the affordability for the folks

I n the nei ghborhood. That's who these things should benefit,
even though I know that it's a nice gesture, but if you are
going to put the gesture, let's put it where it's reachable.

That's just ny two cents, well, it'salittle nore
than that, but | think that's very inportant. So, let ne
open it up.

Comm ssi oner May, do you have any questions?

COW SSI ONER MAY: | do not. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay. Conm ssioner Shapiro, do
you have any questions, comrents?

COMM SSI ONER  SHAPI RO No questions from the
Commi ssi oner, M. Chair, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. Commi ssioner Turnbul |

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: No comments, but | would
totally agree with your comrents and the Vice Chair's
conment s.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. All right.

Vice Chair Mller?

VICECHAIR MLLER: | would totally agree with ny
comrent s, and Conmi ssi oner Fast's coments. Thank you. And,
| ask OP -- am| still on?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Yes, you are still on.

VICE CHAIR M LLER Il would ask OP to | ook at

adding to the [1Z project case office conversion to
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residential, or getting a new case.

There's no reason why | Z shoul d not apply to a new
-- toad485 unit residential developnment. |t is disgraceful.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So, Chairperson Fast, thank you for
your comments, well thought-out comments. Thank you for how
you represent your nei ghborhood. | think you just did a very
well job, especially, fromthe testinony | heard here today.

COW SSI ONER FAST: Thank you, Chairman Hood.

CHAI RVAN HOCOD: But, | will leave it -- Chairperson
Fast, | wll leave it to you, M. Fudin, for you all to
continue to work out -- with the tool that we have continue
to work out exactly some of your prom ses and see how far we
can go and what can be done. |'Il leave it to you. Ckay.
Ms. Schellin, do we have anybody signed up to testify in
support?

MS. SCHELLIN: No, sir.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Nobody is signed up?

MS. SCHELLIN: No, sir.

CHAI RMAN HOCD: Al right. So, Ms. Hott el - Cox,
do you have any rebuttal, any cl osing?

MS.  HOTTEL- COX: No. W appreciate the
Commi ssi on's conversation, and we can, you know, discuss the
di scount rate and look at that, and just to reiterate,
because we do think the career day benefit that WhyHotel has

agreed to is a significant benefit to the ANCto really try
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and | ook at and focus hiring for the enpl oyees for WyHot el

that would be at River Point that could be from ANC 6D

So, since the conversation had been nore around
the discount, | just wanted to reiterate that, because | do
think that's an inportant and a neaningful anenity to the
conmuni ty.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: So, Ms. Hottel - Cox, the career day
Wil |l be beneficial if there's sone out talks. Just to have
a-- and | can tell you I know sone folks in this Gty that
just had a career day. And, they cone down to the Zoning
Commi ssion and say we had a career day, and guess who got
hired. Nobody, or sonebody from West Virginia, and nothing
agai nst West Virginia, because | nay need to go up there to
work. But, I'mjust saying, it's beneficial and advant ageous
when people who, actually, have results that inpact the
nei ghbors. | just wanted to say that for your career day.

COMM SSI ONER FAST: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  And, |I'm sure that you all want
to do it.

COWMM SSI ONER FAST: Thank you.

MR,  FUDI N: Commi ssioner Hood, just for the
record, Baltinore City has now had over 50 percent of all our
enpl oyees cane fromthe City of Baltinore. W take it very
seriously to hire fromthe conmunities that we operate in.

| hear you, and that is an inportant part of our
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town acquisition process. In fact, it's sonething that we do
regardl ess, is we focus particularly on the nei ghborhood and
comunity to hire fromw thin, because we think it's critical
t hat they have a voi ce and they have a place in our conpany.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: So, you are saying that Baltinore
City, a project that you had in Baltinore Cty, nost of the
fol ks who were hired cone fromBaltinore GCity.

MR FUDIN. Correct, it was over 50 percent of all
of our enployees are Baltinore City residents.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: You know | have a way to check

that, not that | don't believe you, but I do have a way to
check it.

MR, FUDIN: |'mhappy to send you the informtion
if you' d like.

CHAI RMAN  HOQOD: Ckay. Al right. Al'l right,
thank you. W listened to your reports and good progress.

Commi ssi oners, any other questions or coments?

Commi ssi oner Shapiro?

COMWM SSI ONER SHAPI RO: Thank you, M. Chair.

Yes, a comment. One way that -- if this
nodi ficati on were granted, one way that it, actually, could
have a negative inpact would be if it is accurate that the
absorption rate, in other words, they will be pretty nuch
fully tenanted up within 15 to 18 nont hs.

If, for whatever reason, it turns out, and we
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grant thema two-year agreenent on this, and it is possible
t hat since they are nmaki ng good noney off of a deal with the
WiyHotel, it's possible that they could continue the nodel
beyond what woul d nornmal |y be the absorption rate, the point
at which they are fully tenanted.

So, one thing that | would suggest, if we are to
consider this, if we do grant this, get to that point, that
| don't think, based on the absorption rate, that we should
grant this for two years, because that could have a negative
| npact on the supply of housing.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Ckay.

COWMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO | didn't hear any conments
fromMs. Hottel -Cox, but that is ny view based upon what |'ve
hear d.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay.

MR, FUDIN:. |'m happy to provide context on the
econom ¢ conponent fromthe devel oper if that's hel pful.

CHAI RMAN  HOQOD: That may be very hel pful and
beneficial as we get ready to deliberate but I'll |eave it
up to Conm ssi oner Shapiro.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO If there's a case to be
made for why this should be set at two years rather than 18
nonth max, yes, you can feel free to nmake it.

MR, FUDIN. So, | would say, the reason we asked

for two years versus 18 nonths is because we don't want to
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have to cone back to the Comm ssion and say, hey, we don't
want to have to go through the whole process and the
ri gmarol e.

In ternms of the benefits to the devel oper,
frankly, they nmake nore noney froman apartnent renter than
they make fromus, soit is -- while there's an i ncone stream
fromit it is always less than they make from just regul ar

residential rent first.

And then secondly, the building is val ued based
on the people who will nmaintain the building, which trades
at higher nmultiples, but evenif we were paying themthe sane

as a renter, which we don't, they would still -- it would
still be advant ageous when t hey have renters, because renters
are nore val uabl e cash

So, our only goal in pop-ups is to make use of
enpty, it's better than nothing. It is not to do better than

what the devel oper would receive froma regul ar residenti al

t enant .

MS. HOTTEL- COX: And, just to confirmon sonething
you had nentioned earlier, Jason. | don't think on any of
your projects you ve gone the full two years, specifically,

due to what you are saying. It is nore advantageous for the
devel oper to nove the units to rental units once they are
ready to be rented, rather than to continue with WyHotel.

MR. FUDIN. That's correct. The | ongest we' ve gone
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has been 15 nonths in the Cty of Baltinore. I'"msorry, and
every approval we've gotten to date has been between 24 and
36 nonths across D.C. Zoning Admnistrator, Arlington,
Fairfax, City of Baltinore, Cty of Atlanta, Seattle and
Houst on.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO. So, every agreenent has been
24 to 36 nonths, and what's the | ongest contract you' ve had?

MR FUDIN: 15 nonths.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Ckay, thank you.

Thank you, M. Chair.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: All right, thank you.

Any ot her final questions or conments? Not seeing
any. Ms. Hottel-Cox, are you finished with your closing, or
you al ready did.

MS. HOTTEL--COX: Yes, we did.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. You did.

Al'l right. So, Conm ssioners, anything el se? M.
Schellin, is everything in order? Ckay.

Lee nme read nmy closing statenent.

MS. SCHELLIN: I'Il just --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: If this doesn't apply, something

is wong here, then we'll straighten it out after | finish
reading. |'mnot going to adjourn, | just want to nmake sure,
Ms. Hottel-Cox, all this is still new.

W wish to thank you for your testinony and
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assistance in this hearing. The record in this case is
cl osed except for information, specifically, requested by the
Comm ssi on, which nmust be filed as indicated by the 2nd.

The Conmm ssion wll make a decision in this case
at one of its regular nonthly neetings follow ng the closing
of the record.

If any individual is interestedinfollowngthis
case, please |look on our website, or you can contact the
O fice of Zoning.

Ms. Schellin, did | |eave anything out?

MS. SCHELLIN. No, sir. There was just -- | think
there was just a couple things that the Conm ssion wanted

themto respond to, or elaborate on.

So, Ms. Hottel-Cox, do you want to provide that
in say two weeks, because this will not come up until the
| ast neeting in July.

MS. HOTTEL--COX: Sure, we can do two weeks or the
earliest we have, so that would be by July 6th.

M5. SCHELLIN It would be by July 6th, yes, and
the ANC, | don't know if Ms. Fast is still listening, but
they would have one week after that, which would be July

13th, to provide a response if they choose to do so, as well
as the Ofice of Planning and DOEE, if they want to provide
a response, they would also have until the 13th, 3:00 p.m,

for all uploads. And then, we'll put this on for 4:00 p. m,
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on July 27th.

MS. HOTTEL--COX: Sharon, is it possible we could
have until July 14th? July 13th is our actual regularly-
schedul ed public neeting.

MS. SCHELLIN:. Sure, absolutely.

M5. HOTTEL--COX: And, if there's any rebuttal we

would want to vote on it to submt.

M5. SCHELLIN.  Sure, July 14th, 3:00 p.m

COW SSI ONER FAST: Thank you.

CHAIRVAN HOOD: |Is everything in order, ©Ms.
Schel I i n?

MS. SCHELLIN: Yes.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: | just want to rem nd everyone who
may be m ssing toni ght, tonorrow ni ght we have a case, Zoni ng
Commi ssi on Case No. 19-7, which is MAl eavy MLK LLC, and 3715
MLK LLC, McAl eavy, at Square 3703, 3705, 3707, 3715 on Martin
Lut her King Jr. Avenue, S.E., Square 67, lots 50, 51, 52 and
48, and that will start at 4:00 in the afternoon.

So, with that, | want to thank everyone for their
participationinthis hearing -- this portion of this hearing
tonight -- or this afternoon, and with that this hearing is
adjourned. W'IIl see everybody tonorrow.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record at 4:58 p.m)
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